
 
Telephone Enquiries:  Democratic Services (01254) 380109 
Email: Michael.cunliffe@hyndburnbc.gov.uk  
Published on Tuesday, 12 March 2019 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cabinet 
 
Wednesday, 20 March 2019 at 3.00 pm, 
QE Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Clare Cleary, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad, Gareth Molineux and Joyce Plummer 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

PART A: PROCEDURAL AND INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Minutes of Cabinet  (Pages 5 - 16) 
 
To approve the Minutes of the last meeting of Cabinet held on 6th February 2019. 
 

4.   Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups  (Pages 17 - 24) 
 
To receive the Minutes of the meetings of the following Boards, Panels and Working 
Groups: 
 
Regeneration and Housing Panel – 14th January 2019 

 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Cabinet Street Naming Committee – 15th February 2019 
 

PART B: PORTFOLIO ITEMS 
 

5.   Reports of Cabinet Members   
 
 

Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) 
 

6.   Sale of Clayton Triangle site - Update from Overview & Scrutiny Committee Call-in  
(Pages 25 - 28) 
 
Report attached. 
 

7.   Renewal of Procurement Strategy  (Pages 29 - 44) 
 
Report attached. 
 

Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration (Councillor Clare Cleary) 
 

8.   Domestic Abuse Services  (Pages 45 - 52) 
 
Report attached.  
 

PART C: EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

9.   Exclusion of the Public   
 
Recommended  That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government 

Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
following items, when it is likely, in view of the nature of the 
proceedings that there will otherwise be disclosure of exempt 
information within the Paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Act 
specified at the items. 

 
Details of any representations received by the Executive about why the following 
report should be considered in public – none received. 
 
Statement in response to any representations – not required. 
 

Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration (Councillor Clare Cleary) 
 

10.   Disposal of 302 Burnley Road, Accrington  (Pages 53 - 58) 
 
Report attached. 
 



 

 
1 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 6th February, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair), Councillors Paul Cox and 

Gareth Molineux 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Dobson, Lisa Allen, Noordad Aziz, June Harrison 

  

Apologies: Councillors Clare Cleary, Munsif Dad and Joyce Plummer 
 

 
287 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Cleary, Plummer and Dad. 
 

288 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

289 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 9th January 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record.  
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

290 Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups 
 
The Minutes of the following meetings were submitted:- 
 
a) Cabinet Street Naming Committee – 7th November 2018 
b) Regeneration and Housing Panel  -  19th November 2018 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 
 

291 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 
There were no reports. 
 

292 Rhyddings Park Coach House Lease Update 
 

The Deputy Leader of the Council (Councillor Paul Cox) submitted a report that sought 

approval for the Friends of Rhyddings Park to operate the café in the Coach House building 

in Rhyddings Park 

 

Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 

   

Reasons for Decision 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 
One of the Rhyddings Park project outcomes agreed with the Heritage Lottery Fund is to 
use the Coach House building as meeting rooms, a cafe and a training kitchen.  Cabinet 
agreed to lease the Coach House building to the Friends of Rhyddings Park on 18 July 
2018.  Members were previously advised that Bootstrap Enterprises would run the café at 
the Coach House in Rhyddings Park with the intention that the Friends of Rhyddings Park 
would sublet that part of the Coach House to this local charity. Unfortunately the grant 
funding opportunities for Bootstrap Enterprises have changed and they are currently not in 
a position to run the café in the Coach House building. 
 
The Friends Of Rhyddings Park have been operating the café for events and on Saturday 
and Sunday mornings on license. This has proved a real success and the Friends Of 
Rhyddings Park have proposed they run the café on allocated days during the week instead 
of Bootstrap Enterprises.  The Friends Of Rhyddings Park is a registered charitable 
incorporated organisation but it is possible that they may create a new social enterprise 
company for the purpose of running the café.   
 
Members of Friends Of Rhyddings Park have undertaken food hygiene training, have 
appropriate food safety management systems in place and been awarded a 5 star rating by 
the Councils Food & Safety team, so are seen as a suitable organisation to run the café 
going forward.  The intention is that all profit derived from the café operation will be used by 
the Friends Of Rhyddings Park for the betterment of the use of the Coach House building 
and/or Park. This profit may be used to help fund events in Rhyddings Park, Friends Of 
Rhyddings Park activities, and not necessarily maintenance or running costs of the building 
and/or park.  

 

Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 

 
Do not permit the Friends Of Rhyddings Park to run the café in the Coach House building. 
This is not recommended as it is a key requirement of the HLF project for Rhyddings Park 
and the Friends Of Rhyddings Park already operate the café at weekends and for events. 

Resolved (1) That the original lease condition be varied to permit the 
Friends of Rhyddings Park the legal capacity, as 
considered appropriate, to operate the cafe in the Coach 
House building in Rhyddings Park;  

 (2) That authority be delegated to the Head of Housing & 
Regeneration in consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
for Environmental Services and the Executive Director 
(Legal & Democratic Services) to agree the terms of the 
lease and complete with the Friends of Rhyddings Park. 

 
293 Council Tax Empty Property Liability Report 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report to seek 
further the Council’s strategy to improve its housing stock and the regeneration of Hyndburn 
by adopting new Government provisions on premium rates of Council Tax for properties 
that are left vacant for over two years. 
 

Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

The national problem of a housing shortage and many existing properties that are empty is 
well documented.  Hyndburn has historically suffered from a higher than normal percentage 
of empty properties, many are left vacant for long periods and blight their neighbourhoods.  
The Council has attempted to address the number of empty properties for a considerable 
time as part of its efforts to regenerate Hyndburn and provide better places to live.  The 
Council welcomed and acted upon the Government’s initial introduction of a premium on 
Council Tax in 2013 for long term empty properties as a means of encouraging their 
occupation.  While the initial Government legislation that took effect in 2013 has helped 
reduce the number of empty properties, there are still over 1000 empty properties that 
remain in Hyndburn that cause damage to our housing market and neighbourhoods.  The 
Council is therefore proposing to introduce the new Government rules fully, to further help 
reduce the overall number of empty properties.   
 

Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 

 
Do nothing – the new legislation provided local authorities with the discretionary power to 
apply premiums to empty properties and there remains the option to retain the premium 
levels we currently apply or delay the implementation of further premiums.   
 
Alternative premium levels – the new legislation allows local authorities to apply premiums 
up to the maximum levels outlined in the report and lower premiums within these limits 
could be applied. 
 
Having considered the positive contribution that the existing premium has made towards 
bringing empty properties back into use, this report recommends that the new premium 
structure is applied in full up to the maximum levels.  Provisions remain within existing 
policy and legislation to lower the premiums if properties are being actively marketed for 
sale or rent as well as discretionary powers to remit Council Tax liabilities in extenuating 
circumstances. 

Resolved (1) That the Council Tax Empty Property Liability Policy be 
approved; and  

 (2) That the empty property premiums be introduced 
incrementally from April 2019 to April 2021, as set out in 
the report and in accordance with provisions in The 
Rating (Property in Common Occupation) and Council 
Tax (Empty Dwellings) Act 2018. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date information was included in the report. 
 

294 Vehicular Management Within Accrington Town Centre 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council (Councillor Paul Cox) submitted a report to inform 
Cabinet of the arrangements for vehicular management to the Accrington Market Hall 
Service Yard, Broadway and the new Town Square and seek approval to utilise Automatic 
Number Plate Recognition, (ANPR) cameras. 
 
Members were requested to consider the Privacy Impact Assessment appended to the 
report prior to taking a decision in respect of the recommendations attached to the report. 
 
Councillor Dobson referred to 3.9 of the report and expressed concern that the proposed 
adoption of Council regulations could inhibit deliveries for some shops. 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
4 

 

Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The area between the Market Hall and Town Hall is the vehicle access for servicing the 
Open Market, the Market Hall, the shops on Broadway that back on to the yard and the 
shops that form part of the Accrington Market Square.   
 
As part of the Broadway development in 2004/05, the Council and the then owners of the 
Town Hall extension building entered into a Deed of Grant for the area, known as the South 
Service Yard.  This provided for the Service Yard to be just that and for the area not to be 
used as a car park.  The Deed of Grant was dated 26th May 2005. As part of this 
agreement, there is a loading/unloading policy in line with the terms of the leases issued to 
both Broadway and Market tenants. 

 
The new paving from the Town Square and the provision of four loading/unloading spaces 
allocated to Lancashire Police has greatly reduced the number of spaces available for 
Broadway and Market tenants to use. This is causing difficulties for the tenants in servicing 
their businesses as there is insufficient availability. 

 
ES Parking Solutions already operate a number of ANPR cameras for other organisations, 
the nearest being the Arndale Car Park. The company is registered as an International 
Parking Community (IPC) Accredited Contractor, and member of the Safe Contractors 
Scheme. 
 
The current method of enforcement involves officers patrolling the different locations. 
However, this does not deal with the number of vehicles that access the Service Yard, 
Broadway and the area in front of the Market Hall on the new Town Square out of hours i.e. 
late night when officers do not patrol. The installation of ANPR cameras linked to a parking 
charge notice enforcement system would make the process more effective, and greatly 
improve vehicle management of the areas. 
 
ES Parking Solutions have offered to provide ANPR camera/s and ongoing costs at zero 
cost to the Council. They are also providing all permits, clear wallets and signage free of 
charge.  
 
Business owners and marker traders with access the service yard and Broadway will be 
informed prior to ANPR cameras going live in February 2019 and all old permits and 
agreements will be withdrawn. New loading/unloading permits will be issued, together with 
the installation of new signage to inform drivers. 
 

Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
Terminating and/or not amending the existing agreement with ES Parking Solutions could 
result in abuse of, Broadway, the Council’s land directly in front of the Market Hall and the 
Market Hall Service Yard. It is highly likely it would also lead to congestion, indiscriminate 
parking, danger to staff/members of the public and breach of covenant included in the Deed 
of Grant relating to other users of the Service Yard. 
 
The parking enforcement contractor cannot provide foot patrols to every area 24/7 and 
there are genuine Health and Safety concerns in deploying lone workers late at night to 
issue tickets. 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
5 

Resolved (1) That authority be delegated to the Executive Director 
(Environmental Services) in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for the Environment to agree 
appropriate terms (including data sharing and data 
protection arrangements) and amend the current 
agreement with ES Parking Solutions for the Market Hall 
Service Yard, to include Broadway and the Council’s 
land directly in front of the Market Hall on the new town 
square as shown edged in blue on the attached 
Vehicular Management Plan;  

 (2) That existing officer patrols be supplemented with the 
addition of ANPR cameras where possible on the Market 
Service Yard, Broadway and in front of the Market Hall 
to reduce vehicle access/authorised parking; and  

 (3) That loading/unloading regulations for the Market Hall 
Service Yard be adopted, as set out in the report and 
authority be delegated to the Executive Director 
(Environmental Services) in consultation with the 
relevant Portfolio Holder to make any future 
amendments to the same. 

 
The following items were submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date financial information was included in the reports. 
 

295 Financial Position December 2018-19 - Report for the Year Ending 31st March 2019 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report relating 
to the financial spending of the Council at the end of December 2018 and the financial 
forecast outturn position for the Accounting Year 2018/19.  The financial detail of the report 
was appended to the report.  The spend against Budget in the nine months of the year was 
£8,022,653 against a Budget of £8,138,859 leaving a positive variance of £116,000.  The 
forecast spend for the year to 31st March 2019 was £10,998,000 against a Budget of 
£11,174,000.  This forecast produces a positive variance of £176,000.  The main area of 
financial pressure is from Town Centre & Markets.  All other Budget Areas are predicting a 
surplus position compared to their Budget by the year-end.   
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision.   
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
To inform Cabinet of the financial spending of the Council at the end of December 2018 and 
the prediction of the outturn position to the end of the financial year in March 2019.  
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted and Corporate Management 

Team be asked to reduce costs and increase income 
over the remainder of the year to improve the Council’s 
overall financial position.     

 
296 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/2022 

 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
6 

The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report relating 
to the three year projections of income and spending for the Council ahead of formulating 
its 2019/20 Revenue and Capital Budget.  The Medium Term Financial Strategy was 
attached to the report and set out for the next three years:- 
 
(a) The way in which the Council went about its financial planning processes, especially 
in relation to the corporate budget planning cycle, which was subject to the Budget and 
Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 
 
(b) An updated action plan for the process and arrangements for reporting on progress 
to date in formulating and updating future years’ budgets.  Specifically the report updated 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy presented to Cabinet in October 2018. 
 
Appendix 1 of the background to the current budget predictions in figures to give an idea of 
commitments, funding and potential Council Tax levels.  Two further scenarios were 
provided in Appendices 2 and 3 to outline the potential range of values over the coming 
period.  Appendix 2 indicated the outer level of what the Council could face in a pessimistic 
future, whilst Appendix 3 showed an optimistic forecast based on many things going in the 
Council’s favour over the next three years.  The figures in Appendix 1 however remained 
the current best estimate of the likely financial position over the next three years. 
 
The following aspects were addressed in the Strategy:- 
 

 Introduction 

 Objectives 

 Elements of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Service Planning to Support Overall Strategy 

 Integrated Resource Planning with Service Plans 

 Background Information 

 Financial Analysis 2018/19 to 2020/21 

 Resources 

 Government Grant 

 Council Tax 

 Expected Loss of Income 

 Changes in Costs 

 Pension Costs 

 Supplies and Service Costs 

 Capital Costs 

 Growth 

 Reserves 

 Other Assumptions 

 Equality Impact Assessment 

 Scenarios 

 Robustness of Forecast 

 Overall Net Position 

 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Cabinet required an update on its medium term financial outlook ahead of setting the 
Budget for 2019/20 and determining the level of Council Tax.  The report also ensured 
those decisions were taken with a view to the overall position of the Council going forward 
and were not limited to a narrow one year perspective. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
7 

Resolved - That the report and accompanying Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) be approved.  

 
 

297 Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 2019/20 to 
2021/2022 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report setting 
out the Council’s policy and objectives with respect to treasury management, explaining 
how it would achieve its objectives and manage its activities; and to agree an investment 
strategy for 2019/20.   
 
The Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 2019/20 and the Treasury Management 
Policy Statement 2019/20 were attached to the report as Appendices 1 and 2 respectively.  
The Treasury Management Practices 2019/20 were set out in Paragraph 14 of the report 
and Appendix 3.  The Capital Strategy 2019/20 was set out in Appendix 4 of the report. 
 
The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities was a professional code which 
set out the framework for self-regulation of capital spending and financing.  It allowed 
councils to invest in capital projects without any limit as long as such investment was 
affordable, prudent and sustainable.  The Code was produced by Cipfa and required the 
Council to agree and monitor a minimum number of prudential indicators (including limits 
and statements) which related to affordability, prudence, capital expenditure, external debt 
and treasury management.  The indicators were purely for internal use and were not 
designed to be used as comparators between councils. 
 
The Council was also required to set out its Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 
for borrowing and investment activities and the effective management of associated risks, in 
accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (Cipfa) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management in Public Services, as revised or supplemented by Cipfa 
from time to time. 
 
The following aspects were addressed in the report:- 
 

 Prudential Code and Prudential Indicators 

 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing Requirement 

 Estimated Capital Expenditure 

 Minimum Revenue Provision 

 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

 Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 – 2021/22 

 External Debt Overall Limits 

 External v Internal Borrowing 

 Limits on Activity 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 Investment Strategy 

 Treasury Management Practices 

 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers 

 Treasury Management Strategy In-Year and Year End Reporting 

 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
(1) Treasury management was defined as the management of the Council’s investment 
and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions, the effective 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
8 

control of the risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. 
 
(2) The Council was required to operate a balanced budget which meant that cash 
raised during the year would meet cash expenditure.  Part of treasury management was to 
ensure the cash flow was properly planned with cash available when needed.  Surplus 
monies were invested in line with the Council’s low risk preferences. 
 
(3) The second function of treasury management was funding the Council’s capital 
plans.  The plans gave a guide to the future borrowing need of the Council.  The 
management of that longer term cash flow might involve arranging long or short term loans 
or using longer term cash flow surpluses.  Occasionally, outstanding debt might be 
restructured to reduce Council risk or meet cost objectives. 
 
(4) The report had been prepared in line with the Treasury Management Code and 
Guidance (2017) written by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(Cipfa).  In the case of local authorities in England and Wales, the Code was significant 
under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2003.  That required local authorities ‘to 
have regard (a) to such guidance as the Secretary of State might issue, and (b) to such 
other guidance as the Secretary of State might by regulations specify’.  Paragraph 24 of the 
Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 required 
local authorities to have regard to that guidance and acceptance of the report fulfilled those 
obligations. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - That Council be recommended to:- 
 
  (i) Adopt the prudential indicators and limits detailed 

in the report; 
 
  (ii) Approve the Treasury Management Strategy and 

associated indicators, as set out in Section 8 of the 
report;  

 
  (iii) Approve the Investment Strategy, as set out in 

Section 13 of the report;  
 
  (iv) Approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 

for the year 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 1 of the 
report; 

 
  (v) Approve the Treasury Management Policy 

Statement 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 2 of the 
report;  

 
  (vi) Approve the Treasury Management Practices 

Statement 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 3 of the 
report 

  
   (vii) Approve the Capital Strategy 2019/20, as set out in 

Appendix 4 of the report. 
 
 

298 General Revenue Budget 2019/20 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
9 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report setting 
out proposals for the 2019/20 General Fund Revenue Budget.  The report also provided an 
overview of key issues which had arisen from the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  The 
decision to set the Budget would be a key decision of the Council and the role of the 
Cabinet was to recommend a proposed Budget to Council.  The 2019/20 Revenue Budget 
required a net expenditure of £10,995,000 and under the budget proposals, Council Tax for 
Hyndburn residents would rise by £5.00 per year for a band D property.  The amounts due 
for each band are shown in Appendix 4 of the report.  Altham Parish Council had issued a 
separate precept requirement for its activities but does not intend to increase its precept.  
The following information was attached to the report:- 
 
Appendix 1  -  Initial Outline Budget 2019/20 
Appendix 2  -  Revenue Budget 2019/20 
Appendix 3  -  Saving Proposals 2019/20 
Appendix 4  -  Hyndburn Borough Council Tax Increase 2019/20 by Property Band 
Appendix 5  -  Overall Change in Council Tax 2019/20 
Appendix 6  -  Altham Parish Precept 2019/20 by Property Valuation Band 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The recommendations in the report provided an appropriate platform on which the Cabinet 
could recommend a Budget for the Council which met the objectives and key priorities of 
the people of Hyndburn. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
A wide number of individual proposals had been put forward to produce a Balanced Budget.  
Options had been rejected on a variety of grounds including policy objectives, practicalities 
and the potential for additional costs to be incurred.  Further options might be presented at 
the Council meeting on 21st February 2019. 

Resolved (1) That an increase in Council Tax for 2019/20 by £5.00 per 
year for a Band D property be recommended.  This 
would be equivalent to less than 10 pence per week and 
as most households in Hyndburn are Band A rather 
than Band D properties, the vast majority of households 
would only see a rise of 7p per week.   That this would 
be only the third increase in Council Tax by Hyndburn 
Council in 10 years; 

 (2) That the Budget for 2019/20 would therefore be 
£10,995,000 as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2; 

 (3) That it be recommended that the list of savings and 
budget changes for 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 3 of 
the report, be approved;  

 (4) That the significant improvements made in relation to 
budget monitoring and cost reduction within the 
Authority over the past 15 years be noted and the 
commitment to continuing that approach in the year 
ahead be confirmed;  

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
10 

 (5) That it be recommended that during the financial year 
2019/20, the Deputy Chief Executive be delegated 
responsibility to amend the Budget (following 
consultation with the Leader of the Council) for 
technical reasons, such as the restructuring of cost 
centres, the re-apportionment and re-allocation of 
overheads, etc., provided such amendments had an 
overall neutral impact on the Budget;  

 (6) That it be recommended that during the financial year 
2019/20 the Deputy Chief Executive be delegated 
responsibility to amend the Budget (following 
consultation with the Leader of the Council) should the 
estimate of Business Rates not be sufficiently accurate, 
by drawing on reserves if needed or paying over 
additional contributions to reserves;  

                              (7) That to aid future financial management planning, any 
surpluses generated during 2019/20 be set aside to help 
the Council to reduce its cost base over the next three 
years, support its long term capital programme or 
strengthen its overall reserve position;  and,  

 (8) That it be recommended that the New Homes Bonus and 
any additional unring-fenced funding from the 
Government, as well as any further surplus on the 
Collection Fund, can be used if required to support 
Capital expenditure as determined by the Deputy Chief 
Executive in the overall financing of capital expenditure 
or be transferred to Reserves. 

 
 

299 Capital Programme 2019/20 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report inviting 
Cabinet to consider the Council’s capital investment priorities for 2019/20 and to 
recommend to the Council a capital programme for approval at its meeting on 21st       
February 2019, having regard to key linkages between the management of the Council’s 
capital and revenue resources.  A Capital Programme for 2019/20 of £2,070,128 was 
appended to the report.   
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The schemes represented the best value for money and met the Council’s overall corporate 
policy objectives, within the funding envelop for the year. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
A wider programme of funding had not been considered due to the Council’s policy 
commitment to limiting Capital Expenditure to affordable levels and seeking to repay debt. 

Resolved - That the following proposals be submitted to Council:-  

Page 12



 
 
 

 

 
11 

  (1) A Capital Programme for 2019/20 of £2,070,128 as 
set out in Appendix 1 of the report;  

  (2) That the Programme be funded by anticipated 
direct external grants of £1,235,128 and £835,000 of new 
investment from the Council’s resources.  External 
grant funding must be secured before any internal 
funds are committed to projects that rely on external 
funding to proceed;  

  (3) That authority be delegated to the Deputy Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Resources, to flex the programme in accordance with 
the available funding, provided that does not require 
any additional borrowing;  

  (4) That the individual projects within the Capital 
Programme require the written authorisation of the 
Deputy Chief Executive, following consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Resources, before commencing and 
incurring expenditure and that Service Managers 
provide the Deputy Chief Executive with written details 
of estimated costs of schemes with full justification of 
the need and benefits from undertaking the capital 
investments before approval was provided and that 
approval to commence be delegated to the Deputy Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Resources;  

  (5) That projects be timed to minimise the need for 
borrowing and the Deputy Chief Executive be requested 
to seek project start dates after September 2019 
whenever that was practical;  and,  

  (6) That in-year underspends are not made available 
to fund new projects during the year. 

 
300 Exclusion of the Public 

 

Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the proceedings that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraph at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
the item. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date information was included in the report. 
 
 

301 Proposed Disposal of the Council's Land Known as Clayton Triangle 
 

Page 13



 
 
 

 

 
12 

Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration submitted an exempt report to 
seek Cabinet approval for the disposal of the Council’s interest in the land known as 
Clayton Triangle. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 

Resolved - That the recommendations as set out in the report be 
approved. 

 
 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 14



 

 
1 

 
REGENERATION AND HOUSING PANEL 

 

 
Monday, 14th January, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor , Councillors Stewart Eaves, June Harrison, Joyce Plummer, 

Dave Parkins and Tim O'Kane 
 

Apologies Clare Cleary, Jean Battle and Tony Dobson 

  

 
31 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Cleary, Battle and Dobson. 
 

32 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest submitted at the meeting. 
 

33 Minutes of Last Meeting held on 19th November 2018 
 
The minutes of the last meeting of the Regeneration and Housing Panel held on 19th 
November were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing informed the Panel that a further meeting of the 
Huncoat Forum would take place on the forecoming Wednesday to discuss the proposed 
Huncoat Garden Village. 

Agreed - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 
record. 

 
34 Regeneration and Housing Capital Programme 

 
The Regeneration Manager submitted a report on the progress with the 2018/19 
Regeneration and Housing Capital Programme.  She reported that spend to date was 
shown in 3.3 of the report with the Housing Capital Programme for 2018/19 amounting to 
£4,870,822.  She informed the Panel that they were working towards contractual and legal 
obligations in the programme.   
 
Councillor Plummer enquired about if the spare land at the end of Nuttall Street - the 
Woodnook Mill site, had been bought by PlaceFirst.  The Head of Regeneration and 
Housing pointed out that a relate item had been placed on the agenda as item 9 for 
discussion later in the meeting. 

Agreed - That the report be noted. 
 

35 Housing and Environmental Standards 
 
The Environmental Protection Manager submitted a report to update the Panel on actions 
taken by the Environmental Protection Team in relation to land and buildings that were 
detrimental to the amenity of the area and/or causing a public health nuisance, during the 2 
month period from 1 November to 31 December 2018.   
 
Members submitted the following comments: 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 

 Request that staff were made aware of Members’ appreciation of the their efforts in 
ensuring that environmental standard were maintained. 

 The Woonook area at the rear of Nuttall Street requires checking, possibly Edmund 
Street.   

 Councillor Dobson reported that the areas which required improvement would be 
like a domino effect in respect of the area deteriorating.  

 Councillor Harrison reported that bins were not moved in suitable place at the back 
which could deal with this. 

 
The Environmental Protection Manager reported that certain powers were available to 
submitted fixed penalty notices for conditions of back gardens.  He reported that these were 
regularly used. 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing reported that the issues of bins at the rear should 
be reported to the Director for Environmental Services.   
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing referred to concerns of Councillors and residents 
about the Hargreaves Warehouse and pointed out that the Council had now taken 
enforcement action 

Agreed - That the report and comments be noted. 
 

36 Disabled Facility Grant Eligibility 
 
The Regeneration Manager submitted a report to update the Panel on the financial and 
eligibility criteria for Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs).  She pointed out that this report was 
in response to concerns raised by Members at a previous meeting about the length of time 
it had taken to process applications for disabled facility grants.   
 
She gave details of the current procedures in place for dealing with applications including: 

 Explaining what a Disabled Facility Grant is. 

 The types of works covered by Disabled Facility Grants. 

 The eligibility of adaptations. 

 Financial assessments of grants. 
 
She reported that Social Services would take responsibility for accessing the criteria for 
eligibility on medical grounds, the Council would consider what was reasonable and 
practical in the property and the amount of grant approved would be measured by the 
Government’s means testing process.   
 
Members raised the following concerns: 

 That people would still be required to contribute even though they may be on 
the top rate of mobility allowance. 

 Requests for grants were often over complicated. 

 People in genuine need cannot always acquire the assistance they require 
through the present system. 

   Concerns about how people are required to find contributions and a lack of 
information in place for guiding people in respect of this. 

 
The Regeneration Manager reported that the assessment of Disabled Facility Grants took 
into account income and savings and gave details of how calculations were made.  She 
referred Members to the list of adaptations that had been granted across the borough.  She 
reported that Occupational Therapists in hospital could make referrals to Social Services 

Page 16



 
 
 

 

 
3 

and that these adaptations could be completed before the person was sent home from 
hospital.  She referred to the importance of building regulations when assessing and 
providing adaptations and the Head of Regeneration and Housing pointed out the strict 
rules around this but suggested that agencies could possibly be more proactive in their 
approach.   
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing pointed out that there was no longer a waiting time 
for funding and requested that Members of the Panel raised awareness of this in 
communities so that more people could have access to grants for disabled facilities and to 
refer those in need.  He pointed out that there was still a process to go through but ways 
were being sought to speed the process up.         
 
Agreed - That Members noted the rules on Disabled Facility 

Grants. 
 
 

37 Asylum Seekers and Syrian Refugees 
 
The Housing Strategy & Policy Manger submitted a report to update the Regeneration and 
Housing Panel on the dispersal of asylum seekers in Hyndburn and the Home Office 
request to increase the number of properties available.  The report also updated the Panel 
about the Lancashire Syrian Refugee Resettlement Programme and Hyndburn’s 
participation in this.   
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing pointed out that there had been two distinct 
programmes – one around the Syrian Refugee Resettlement Programme and one around 
Asylum Seekers.  He explained the difference between the two programmes and reported 
that SERCO currently had the Government contract for ensuring provision of 
accommodation for asylum seekers in the North West, although this contract was due for 
retender.  He reported that the Syrian Refugee resettlement programme had gone well and 
those rehoused in Hyndburn had settled in well.  He reported that pressure was anticipated 
from Government to increase the number of asylum seekers rehoused in the borough.   
 
Councillor Plummer advised the Panel that SERCO had not been very helpful in placing 
people of mixed religion in one accommodation which had, in turn, resulted in the Police 
being called out.  She also complained that there was a lack of communication from 
SERCO to ward Councillors when people were rehoused in their wards and referred to the 
importance of ensuring that this happened.  
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing reported that SERCO had responded when 
Hyndburn Borough Council had been required to provide housing.  He referred Members to 
table 3.4 of the report showing the latest available information on the number of dwellings 
secured by SERCO in Lancashire, for asylum seekers.     
 
Councillor Parkins asked if a representative from SERCO could be invited to a meeting of 
the Panel. 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing indicated that there would be difficulties in inviting 
a representative of SERCO to address the Panel and that concerns may be better 
addressed by the Member of Parliament.  He also advised the Panel against raising public 
awareness of rehousing asylum seekers and refugees due to possible extremist opinions.  
Councillor O’Kane suggested that greater efforts could be made to promote a more positive 
perception of the rehousing of asylum seekers and refugees.       
 

Page 17



 
 
 

 

 
4 

Agreed (1) That the Panel noted the current situation in respect of 
the Asylum Dispersal Programme in Hyndburn; and 

 (2)   That the Panel recommend that delegated authority be 
sought from Cabinet for the Head of Regeneration and 
Housing to negotiate and agree an extension to the 
current commitment of 15 properties and to consider 
extending the current areas for dispersal beyond 
Accrington and Church. 

 
38 Lancashire County Council Budget Saving Proposals: Implications for Housing 

Services 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing advised the Panel on potential implications of 
Lancashire County Council’s (LCC) budget saving proposals for housing services in 
Hyndburn.   
 
He reported that there were two direct implications for housing services in the borough and 
these were to declare the county owned traveller site, Whinney Hill, Altham surplus 
including an option to sell and the cessation of Home Improvement Service contracts.  He 
explained that the traveller site had been owned by Lancashire County Council and that 
Hyndburn Borough Council had managed this on their behalf.  He reported that the Council 
were in the process of writing to Lancashire County Council expressing concern with both 
proposals and updated the Panel further by stating that since this report had been written 
there had been concerns about temporary closure.  He referred to consultations being held 
with the Council to look at the main issues.   
 
Agreed - That the report be noted. 
    
 

39 Housing Growth 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing submitted a report to update the Panel on progress 
with new housing opportunities and development across the Borough. He referred 
Members to a typo in 3.2 ii) of the report in which he pointed out that this should have read 
‘Accrington Area Action Plan’ and not ‘Accrington Area Advice Plan’ DPD’.   
 
He informed the Panel that as part of the completed housing needs assessment a report 
would be submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet to keep Members informed about the 
document.  He reported that they would aim to build 216 new dwellings per annum between 
the present and 2036.  He referred to Huncoat Garden Village proposal and reported on 
good progress with the HGV Masterplan and Delivery Strategy.  He reported that an update 
report would be submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet on 17th January to inform 
Members of the outcome of the stage 2 Option development and viability testing.  He 
reported that a 3rd Option would arise from this and that the preferred final Masterplan 
would be ready by the end of April 2019.  He reported that further consultation would be 
held with residents and the community.  He informed Members of details of key housing 
sites.  
 
Agreed - That the report be noted. 
 

40 Urgent Business 
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

41 The Time and Date of Future Meetings: 

Page 18



 
 
 

 

 
5 

 
The next meeting of the Regeneration and Housing Panel was scheduled for Monday 18th 
March 2019. 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
CABINET COMMITTEE (STREET NAMING) 

 

 
Friday, 15th February, 2019 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Gareth Molineux (in the Chair),  
Councillors Paul Cox and Miles Parkinson 
 

Apologies Judith Addison, Munsif Dad and Clare Cleary 

  

 
311 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Judith Addison, Clare 
Cleary and Munsif Dad. 
 
Councillors Paul Cox and Miles Parkinson acted as substitute representatives for 
Councillors Cleary and Dad.   
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations.  
 

312 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Cabinet Committee- Street Naming held on the 7th November 2018 were 
submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

313 Street Naming Proposal- Norman Road, Oswaldtwistle 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report to seek approval for the 
naming of a street for a new-build residential development located off Norman Road, 
Oswaldtwistle. 
 
Members present at the meeting discussed the history of the site and the link to the 
proposed name and were in support of the choice which was detailed in the report attached 
to the agenda. 
 
Resolved - That the street name (Cobble Close) be named as per the  

Officer’s recommendation in the report.  
 

 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



 

 

REPORT TO: Cabinet 

DATE: 20 March 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Jane Ellis 

Executive Director (Legal & Democratic Services) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Sale of Clayton Triangle site – update from Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee Call-in 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To report the findings of the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee “Call-in” in 

respect of the sale of the Clayton Triangle site. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That Cabinet note that the Cabinet decision of 6th February 2019 in respect of the 

disposal of the Clayton Triangle site was released in full for implementation. 

2.2      That Cabinet note the comments of the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee in 
respect of future disposals of land and property as set out in paragraph 3 of this report. 

 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 At its meeting on 6th February 2019 Cabinet approved the disposal of the land known 

as Clayton Triangle. That decision was subsequently “called in” by the Resources 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee, which met to consider the matter on 4th March 2019. 

3.2        After careful consideration the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee released 

the Cabinet decision for full implementation. 

3.3        In addition, Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee asked that Cabinet note the 

following: 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6.



 

 

             i) that the Committee wishes to ensure that ward councillors are consulted in respect 

proposals for the sale of land and property in their area and that there is wider 

member participation in the disposal of Council owned sites; and 

             ii) that the Committee is keen to ensure that the Council markets its sites for sale as 

widely and proactively as possible to ensure that development opportunities are 

brought to the attention of a wide range of potential purchasers. This will include 

ensuring the Council has an up to date mailing list of all developers, including co-

operatives and registered social landlords. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable. 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

none 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

none 

Assessment of risk 
 

none identified 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

none identified 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1     None 
 
 
  

Page 24

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT TO: Cabinet 

DATE: 20 March 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Jane Ellis 

Executive Director (Legal & Democratic Services) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Renewal of procurement strategy 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 to seek approval to extend the Council’s current procurement strategy for 2 years to 

enable the procurement implications of Brexit to be better understood prior to a new 
procurement strategy being prepared. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Council’s Procurement Strategy 2014-18 be extended for two years to enable 

the procurement implications of Brexit to be better understood prior to a new 
procurement strategy being prepared. 

 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Council’s existing Procurement Strategy covers the period 2014 – 2018 and is 

attached as an appendix to this report. The Strategy was approved by Cabinet in 

June 2014 and it established the following as the Council’s procurement objectives: 

 Effective procurement: 

 Delivering value for money by reducing costs whilst maintaining quality 

 Reducing unnecessary bureaucracy and streamlining our processes 

 Maintaining high standards of probity, transparency and legal compliance 

          Sustainable procurement: 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7.



 

 

 Supporting the local economy 

 Protecting the environment 

 Promoting a fairer society 

3.2    The Strategy is now due for review and updating. However, there is some uncertainty 
about the direction of public procurement following Brexit and it seems sensible to 
delay this work until the implications of Brexit are better understood. For this reason it 
is suggested that the Procurement Strategy is extended to cover the period 2014 – 
2020. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There is no legal requirement to have a Procurement Strategy, so Cabinet could 

dispense with the Strategy completely. However, it is recognised good practice to have 
a procurement strategy as part of the Council’s approach to securing best value, so 
this is not recommended. Alternatively, Cabinet could request officers to review and 
update the Procurement Strategy now, rather than agreeing to the proposed delay. 
This is not recommended as it could lead to abortive work, as any strategy put in place 
now could need to be further reviewed and updated in the near future, post-Brexit. 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 There have been no consultations to date, though consultation will take place as part 

of the review of the Procurement Strategy. 
 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

none 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

none 

Assessment of risk 
 

none identified 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

none identified 

 
 

Page 28

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 
List of Background Papers  

 
7.1     None 
 
 
  

Page 29



 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Procurement Strategy 2014 – 18  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 HYNDBURN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 

2014 – 2018 

 

 

I                     1. INTRODUCTION 

 

This is Hyndburn Council’s fourth Procurement Strategy and replaces the one 
agreed in 2009. It provides a framework that sets out our strategic approach 
to procurement and recognises: 

 that the Council is one of the largest purchasers of works, goods and 
services in Hyndburn;  

 that the Council has social, economic, environmental and legal 
responsibilities when making procurement decisions and getting it right 
enables us to meet the Council’s strategic objectives and our customers’ 
needs; 

 that effective procurement is essential to achieving value for money from 
reducing resources, and enables us to balance cost and quality; 

 that we cannot properly manage our budget without a professional and 
commercial approach to procurement, based on accountability, fairness, 
probity and transparency 

 that effective procurement can be a challenge, often involving the need to 
reconcile a number of potentially conflicting priorities, such as: 

 balancing cost and quality 

 supporting the local economy within the legislative framework 

 streamlining processes and reducing unnecessary bureaucracy whilst 
ensuring procedures are legal, transparent, accountable and fair 

 allowing innovation and creativity within existing procurement rules 

This strategy aims to dispel the perception that rules and regulations relating 
to procurement serve as barriers to innovation and constrain management 
with unnecessary red tape. The contrary is true. Good procurement practice 
across the Council will save money and time in the long run and achieve 
better outcomes for people and businesses in Hyndburn. 

This strategy is intended for: 

 Our customers – so they can be aware of the direction the Council is 
taking and let us know what they think 

 Our councillors – so they can lead, challenge and monitor the way we 
carry out procurement 

Page 31



 Our corporate management team – so they can manage the Council’s 
adherence to the objectives we have set for ourselves  and ensure that 
proposed improvements actually happen 

 Our service managers – so they can be clear about the Council’s 
objectives and shape their procurement activities accordingly 

 Our suppliers and potential suppliers – so they can see the direction 
the Council is taking 

 Our partners – so we can all work together to align our policies and  
strategic direction 

 

In summary, our procurement objectives are: 

Effective procurement: 

 Delivering value for money by reducing costs whilst maintaining quality 

 Reducing unnecessary bureaucracy and streamlining our processes 

 Maintaining high standards of probity, transparency and legal 
compliance 

Sustainable procurement: 

 Supporting the local economy 

 Protecting the environment 

 Promoting a fairer society 

 

 

 

 

                      2. The bigger picture - where are we now ? 

 

Hyndburn Council is a big business. We spend significant sums every year on 
capital projects and in purchasing goods, services and works. For example, in 
2013 we spent in the region of £7.5million with third party suppliers, which 
was approximately 41% of our total budget for the year. Procurement 
therefore affords us a tremendous opportunity to deliver our strategic 
objectives and make a significant impact on the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of the Borough and its citizens. It is one of the ways 
we can help to ensure that Hyndburn is no longer one of the 100 most 
deprived areas nationally by 2018.  

However, in recent years the Council’s spending power has reduced 
significantly as its resources have declined. The Council’s annual budget 
(Revenue and Capital) has reduced by 53% between 2010/11 and 2014/15 
and it is likely that the Council will need to make savings in the region of 
£2.3million in the next year. Every penny counts and, with financial pressures 

Page 32



set to continue for the foreseeable future, it is essential that we procure 
efficiently and effectively to drive down costs whilst maintaining the quality of 
our services. 

We will need to be open to doing things differently and there have already 
been significant changes in the way we deliver services. 

 For example: 

 Leisure In Hyndburn was set up as a charitable trust to manage sports and 
leisure facilities across the Borough 

 A shared consultation & research service which was set up in 2003, jointly 
funded by the Borough Councils of Hyndburn, Burnley, Pendle, 
Rossendale and Ribble Valley, Lancashire County Council and East 
Lancashire NHS. This ensures expert capacity is available at a fraction of 
the cost to each partner. 

 We operate a jointly funded shared service with Blackburn with Darwen 
Borough Council and Lancashire Constabulary that provides CCTV 
operational staff and hardware maintenance. 

 Hyndburn and Pendle Councils operate a shared service for local land 
charges 

 Regenerate Pennine Lancashire is a local authority owned company, 
established in 2009 to provide a shared economic development function 
for its 5 local authority members (Hyndburn, Burnley, Pendle, Blackburn 
with Darwen and Rossendale.) 

 In 2012 the Council entered a formal arrangement with Accrington & 
Rossendale College through which the two organisations provide mutual 
IT ‘back up’ and disaster recovery support. The arrangement means that 
both organisations can save money by not having to pay a third party for 
this service.  

 Since 2010 the Council has outsourced grass cutting for its highways 
verges and amenity areas.  

 We operate a shared service (in conjunction with Blackburn, Burnley, 
Pendle and Rossendale Councils) offering a 24hr helpline for residents 
experiencing problems with night time nuisance.  

 For a number of years the Council has purchased its refuse vehicles 
through the Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation. YPO is now itself part of 
the Pro5 purchasing consortium with a combined spending power of £2 
billion per annum. The Council has recently purchased six refuse vehicles 
through this consortium. 

 When procuring new fitness equipment, the Council uses framework 
contracts from the Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO) to 
ensure best value. In 2012 the Council refitted the fitness suites in its 2 
leisure centres, procuring £256k worth of equipment through ESPO. 

 We already operate a range of services in partnership with Rossendale 
Borough Council, including emergency planning, planning and 
development control 

Page 33



 

                     3. OUR PROCUREMENT AIMS 

 
We aim to deliver consistently high quality, cost effective services that meet 
our customers’ needs. We will do this by operating a mixed economy of 
service provision including in-house services, small and local businesses, 
ethnic minority businesses, voluntary and community sector groups and by 
working collaboratively and in partnership with others. 

 

Our procurement aims are: 

Effective procurement: 

 Delivering value for money by reducing costs whilst maintaining quality 

 Reducing unnecessary bureaucracy and streamlining our procedures  

 Maintaining high standards of probity, transparency and legal 
compliance 

Sustainable procurement: 

 Supporting the local economy 

 Protecting the environment 

 Promoting a fairer society 

 

 

Priorities for development  

We have identified a number of areas where we need to improve and develop 
to ensure we achieve the highest possible standard of procurement. We are 
also aware of a number of potentially significant external developments to 
which we must respond. For example: 

 Improving our contract management to ensure high standards of 
performance by our suppliers and to ensure we take advantage of 
opportunities for service improvement 

 Developing our procurement skills to promote innovation, creativity 
and a more commercial approach, as well as compliance with our 
existing policies and procedures 

 Developing a more strategic approach to procurement, as better 
planning enables us to explore innovative ideas for collaboration or 
new ways of working 

 Developing meaningful performance measures for procurement to 
ensure we are able to assess the impact and effectiveness of our 
procurement activity without creating an undue or disproportionate 
administrative burden 

 Ensuring compliance with legislative requirements given the 
increased risk of legal challenge arising from the new “right to 
challenge”, new TUPE rules, changes to EU procurement rules, the 

Page 34



equality duty under the Equality Act 2010 and new duties under the 
Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012  

 

                     4. WHAT WILL WE DO TO IMPROVE  ? 

 

 

Effective Procurement  

Value for money                                                              Timescale 

Develop and improve our ability to set 
appropriate quality and performance standards 
within specifications and to monitor contractual 
compliance 

By 31st March 
2015 

Develop and implement a small number of 
appropriate performance measures relating to 
procurement 

By 31st March 
2015 

Improve the availability and range of 
procurement related management information 
available to managers 

By 31st March 
2015 

Advertise Council tenders online and via “The 
Chest” website 

By 30th 
September 2014 

Train our staff to operate more commercially to 
seek opportunities to reduce prices and 
challenge existing procurement arrangements 

By 31st March 
2015 

Require a consideration of procurement 
opportunities as part of the business planning 
process, identifying opportunities to generate 
savings and / or operate more efficiently 

By 30th 
September 2015 

Review long term contracts and consider 
opportunities for renegotiation to achieve 
savings  

By 31st March 
2015 

Consider opportunities to collaborate with 
other bodies where efficiencies and economies 
of scale can be achieved 

Ongoing 

 

Effective Procurement Timescale 

Reducing bureaucracy  

Explore options for streamlining our payment By 31st March 

Page 35



processes (for example by a review of the 
purchase to pay process), including electronic 
invoices and greater use of procurement cards 

2015 

Continue to develop the use of e-procurement Ongoing 

Extending the use of purchasing cards to 
procure low value goods 

By 31st March 
2015 

 

Effective Procurement Timescale 

High standards  

Undertake a review of the Contract Procedure 
Rules and recommend any changes to Council 

By 31st March 
2015 

Develop the resources available on the 
Hyntranet for staff involved in procurement, 
including precedent documents, guidance on 
procurement processes and guidance on legal 
/ probity requirements  

By 31st March 
2015 

Develop a training programme for staff 
involved in procurement, including training in 
negotiation skills and contract management 
and training aimed at increasing commercial 
awareness 

By 31st December 
2014 

Develop member awareness of procurement 
through reports and training sessions as 
appropriate 

By 31st December 
2014 

Appoint and support a member procurement 
champion 

By 31st December 
2014 

Prepare procurement plans and undertake a 
documented risk assessment prior to all 
significant (in terms of cost, or complexity) 
procurements 

By 31st March 
2015 

Reconvene and develop the procurement 
officers group to promote awareness of 
strategy objectives and good practice 

By 30th 
September 2014 

 

Sustainable Procurement  

Local Economy  

Page 36



Commentary  

Procurement legislation limits the Council’s 
ability to favour local businesses but there are 
numerous ways in which we can legitimately 
support local firms. Working within the 
limitations of the law we will encourage a 
diverse supplier base and support local, 
smaller and voluntary sector organisations to 
take advantage of opportunities to bid for 
Council contracts. We will also work with our 
suppliers to encourage local employment and 
training opportunities for our citizens. To help 
with this we will try to ensure that the 
complexity of the procurement process is 
proportional to contract value and that we offer 
feedback to those who are unsuccessful. 

 

Actions Timescale 

Maintain and develop our online contracts 
register giving details of the Council’s current 
contract commitments 

Ongoing 

Pursue ways to assist local business to gain 
work with the Council’s main contractors, such 
as encouraging main contractors to advertise 
opportunities to work on Council contracts in 
local media or via the Council’s website 

By 31st March 
2015 

Organise further “Meet the Buyer” events to 
assist local businesses to compete 
successfully for Council work 

By 30th 
September 2015 

Continue to review, update and improve our 
online “Doing Business With The Council” 
guidance 

To be done 
annually 

Monitor the number of local suppliers and 
contractors awarded Council contracts and 
report annually 

By 31st March 
2015 

Monitor  spend with local suppliers and report 
annually 

Feasibility 
assessed by 31st 
March 2015 

Endeavour to pay SME’s within 10 working 
days for an undisputed invoice 

Feasibility 
assessed by 31st 

Page 37



March 2015 

Develop a Community Right to Challenge 
policy 

By 31st March 
2015 

Consider reducing the threshold  for 
advertising contracts from £75 000 to £50 000 

By 31st March 
2015 

 Package contracts in a manner where 
possible that does not preclude the 
following from tendering: 

 Local and regional firms 

 SME’s 

 Newly formed businesses 

 The voluntary and community sector 

Ongoing 

Advertising tenders on our website and via The 
Chest 

By 31st March 
2015 

 

 

Sustainable Procurement  

Environment  

Commentary  

We want to ensure that our procurement 
practices are environmentally sustainable. In 
particular we will seek to: 

 Eliminate waste 

 Use goods and services  which are least 
harmful to the environment 

 Maximise opportunities for recycling 

 Encourage the use of Fair Trade products 

 

Actions Timescale 

Evaluation of all major procurement activity to 
include a section dealing specifically with 
sustainability and issues such as carbon 
impact and suppliers environmental policies, 
with 10% of the scoring being allocated to an 
assessment of sustainability 

Feasibility 
assessed by 31st 
March 2015 

Page 38



Review and update guidance for staff about 
the procurement of ethical goods and 
wherever possible and practicable, specify the 
use of environmentally friendly materials and 
products 

By 31st March 
2015 

Evaluate contract costs over the life-cycle of 
products, taking account of issues such as 
durability, cost of repair and cost of disposal 

Ongoing 

Ensure that specifications include the facility 
for bidders to offer prices for environmentally 
friendly alternatives 

By 31st March 
2015 

 

 

Sustainable Procurement  

Fair  

Commentary  

Our procurement practices can have a direct 
and indirect impact on diversity. They can be 
an opportunity to develop services to ensure 
their relevance to diverse communities. They 
are also an opportunity to make sure that our 
suppliers act in a way that promotes cohesion 
and avoids unfair discrimination. When 
procuring we will seek to comply with the 
equality duty in the Equality Act 2010  which 
requires us to: 

 Eliminate unfair discrimination suffered by 
people due to a protected characteristic; 

 Advance equality of opportunity  

 Promote good relations between different 
groups 

In order to comply with the Public Services 
(Social Value) Act 2012 we will also consider 
how each procurement can improve the social, 
economic and environmental well-being of the 
Borough 

Where possible and appropriate we will use 
procurement to promote job creation, skills 

 

Page 39



training and apprenticeships with the aim of 
improving employment opportunities for our 
citizens. 

Actions Timescale 

No complaints of unfair discrimination in the 
development or award of contracts 

Ongoing  

Develop an approach to seeking customer 
feedback more systematically in respect of 
procured works, goods and services 

Feasibility 
assessed by 31st 
March 2015 

Where relevant to the purpose of the contract, 
the evaluation of all major procurement activity 
to include a section dealing specifically with 
equality and diversity, with up to10% of the 
scoring being allocated to an assessment of 
equality and diversity issues 

Feasibility 
assessed by 31st 
March 2015 

Review our current policies and procedures for 
assessing and evaluating equality and diversity 
issues in procurement and update the same as 
appropriate 

By 31st March 
2015 

Build social and community benefits into 
service specifications and the evaluation of 
tenders where appropriate and lawful to do so 

Feasibility 
assessed by 31st 
March 2015 

Where possible and relevant to the purpose of 
the contract, develop specifications 
incorporating employment, training and 
apprenticeship outcomes 

Feasibility 
assessed by 31st 
March 2015 

Develop ways to collect data and monitor 
procurement outcomes in respect of: 

 Suppliers existing apprenticeships 

 Apprenticeships created as a result of 
procurement 

 Jobs created as a result of procurement 

Proposal 
produced by 31st 
March 2015 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

REPORT TO: Cabinet   

DATE: 20 March 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Clare Cleary - Housing 

REPORT AUTHOR: Fiona Goodfellow, Housing Strategy & Policy 
Manager 

TITLE OF REPORT: Domestic Abuse Services  

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To seek authority to enter into a Grant Agreement with HARV (Hyndburn and Ribble 

Valley Domestic Abuse Service) to enable HARV to deliver domestic abuse support 
services to enhance the domestic abuse safe house provision and deliver a sanctuary 
scheme in Hyndburn. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
 I recommend that Cabinet:- 
 
2.1    Agrees to the Council accepting grant funding of £96,619 - for safe house support and 

an amount to be determined (approx. £5k to £10k) to support a sanctuary scheme - 
from Lancashire County Council to enhance domestic abuse support services in the 
Borough  

 
2.2 Delegates authority to the Head of Regeneration and Housing following consultation 

with the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Housing Services to agree the terms of, 
and enter into a grant agreement with Hyndburn and Ribble Valley Domestic Abuse 
Service (HARV) to enable them to enhance their domestic abuse safe house provision 
and deliver a sanctuary scheme in Hyndburn.  

 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Lancashire CC in partnership with the 12 Lancashire district housing authorities and 11 

domestic abuse service providers has been successful in securing a grant award of 
£1,249,947.00 across the county via a bid to MHCLG (Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government). This nationwide ‘2018 – 2020 Fund for 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8.



 

2 
 

Domestic Abuse Services’ is for local areas to work collaboratively across local 
authority boundaries to strengthen domestic abuse provision. An additional £120,000 
has been awarded that will help towards the delivery of sanctuary schemes. The 
funding is a one off grant payment for 18 months (October 2018 to end of March 2020).  

 
3.2 Through this bid Hyndburn has secured an allocation of £96,619 to assist in the 

enhancement of the domestic abuse safe house provision in the Borough. Funding will 
be used by HARV to employ support workers which include a dedicated BME (Black 
Minority Ethnic) and Complex Needs Worker and a part time Family Support Worker to 
support families living in the safe houses and ensuring that victims from all sections of 
the community are able to access the provision.  

 
3.3 HARV also manages and co-ordinates the Boroughs sanctuary scheme provision for 

victims of domestic abuse in Hyndburn. This support enables victims of domestic 
abuse to stay safe in their own homes through the provision of physical security 
measures including window and door locks, strengthening doors, emergency alarms 
etc. The grant funding will ensure this scheme continues.  

 
3.5 The Council will enter into a grant agreement with HARV which will provide funding to 

HARV to enable it to deliver support to the residents in Hyndburn’s safe houses and to 
deliver a sanctuary scheme to keep victims of domestic abuse safe and secure in their 
own homes. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no realistic alternative options. Both Hyndburn Borough Council and HARV 

supported the successful bid to MHCLG. HARV has provided the support to the 
residents in Hyndburn’s safe house for the last 5 years and has delivered the 
sanctuary scheme in the Borough since 2006. This new funding will enable HARV to 
continue to deliver support to vulnerable victims of domestic abuse in the borough. As 
the funding is for 18 months only it does not seem reasonable or proportionate to look 
at grant funding other agencies that would have set up costs etc. The grant funding 
received will deliver the outcomes stated in the bid. 

 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Consultations were undertaken across Lancashire through the Lancashire Domestic 

Abuse Forum prior to the bid being submitted. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

A grant of £96,619 plus an amount for a 
sanctuary scheme (£5 - £10k) will be paid by 
LCC to the Council. This funding will be 
passed onto HARV by way of a grant 
agreement to support their activities in the 
Borough. Upon expenditure of this funding 

Page 44



 

3 
 

any additional grant funded services provided 
by HARV will cease unless further funding 
can be obtained by HARV. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

A grant agreement will be put in place 
between LCC and Hyndburn BC for the 
award of the funding to the Council. A grant 
agreement will be drawn up between 
Hyndburn BC and HARV to fund the delivery 
of the support services at the safe houses 
and the proposed sanctuary scheme. 

Assessment of risk 
 

The Council as grant funder will manage the 
risk of the money being misspent. The risks 
associated with the delivery of the services 
will be the responsibility of HARV as service 
provider. The grant agreement will make 
these responsibilities clear.  

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Attached. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Application to DCLG: 2018/20 Fund for Domestic Abuse Services’ to help local areas 

meet the priorities for Domestic abuse Services. (August 2018) 
 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
 

Page 45

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


This page is intentionally left blank



 UNCLASSIFIED  
 

1 of 4 

 

 

Hyndburn Borough Council 
 
Customer First Analysis 
 
Domestic Abuse Services 
(Cabinet Report 20 March 2019) 

 
 

1. Purpose 
 

 What are you trying to achieve with the policy / service / function? 
 

The enhancement of the domestic abuse safe house provision in Hyndburn through the 
granting of revenue funding to HARV (Hyndburn and Ribble Valley Domestic Abuse Service) to 
enable the provision of dedicated, specialist staff to raise the standard of support for the safe 
house and increase capacity. This includes:- 
 

 Co-ordination resource to assist in access for all sections of the community to 
appropriate refuge / safe house provision 

 Access to refuge support and resettlement support 

 Access to support for families 

 Access to specialist support for residents from black and minority ethnic communities 

 Access to support for residents with complex needs i.e. alcohol and substance misuse 
and mental health 

 

 Who defines and manages it? 
 

The funding has been secured via a successful grant application to MHCLG (Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government) by Lancashire CC (LCC) , the 12 Lancashire 
district housing authorities and 11 domestic abuse service providers. The bid detailed the 
services to be provided across Lancashire to enable a common offer in all refuge / safe house 
provision as outlined above. 
 
A grant agreement will be in place between LCC and Hyndburn BC for the award of the funding. 
A grant agreement will be drawn up between Hyndburn BC and HARV for the delivery of 
services at the safe house(s). 

 

 Who do you intend to benefit from it and how? 
 

Victims of domestic abuse by providing safe and secure short term supported accommodation. 
 

 What could prevent people from getting the most out of the policy / service / function? 
 

Access to the safe house may be restricted if the accommodation is full.  
 
The service is only for women and children. The existing safe house does not provide 
accommodation for male victims although Burnley has a safe house for men to whom a referral 
could be made if appropriate.  If a male victim approached for help HARV would undertake a 
safety plan and offer telephone support/advice, court support, access to counselling, including 
a possible referral to the Burnley safe house. Each case would be looked at on its own merits 
although no specific accommodation is available in the borough.   

Page 47



 UNCLASSIFIED  
 

2 of 4 

 
 
 
 

 How will you get your customers involved in the analysis and how will you tell people about it? 
 

The specialist support provider for the safe houses will involve potential, actual and ex 
customers in consultation about the nature and delivery of the service. LCC will also facilitate 
an independent evaluation of the benefits of the services provided.  
 

 
2. Evidence 
 

 How will you know if the policy delivers its intended outcome / benefits? 
 

A grant agreement will be in place between Hyndburn BC and HARV to monitor the outcomes 
and benefits of the service. Regular monitoring of outcomes and services provided will be 
undertaken. 

 

 How satisfied are your customers and how do you know? 
 

Regular customer surveys and consultation will take place with all service users. 
 

 What existing data do you have on the people that use the service and the wider population? 
 

Lancashire carried out a holistic domestic abuse joint strategic needs assessment (JSNA) that 
assessed evidence both nationally and locally to inform decision making around the provision 
of additional domestic abuse services including support services. 
 
Lancashire also collects ‘access to services’ data for all its refuges. During 2017/18 there were 
a total of 2087 applications to refuges of these 569 were accommodated. The main reasons for 
clients not receiving a service were that the accommodation was full or the households had 
support needs that were too high / complex. This proposed service aims to address these. 

 

 What other information would it be useful to have?  How could you get this? 
 

Feedback from service users on the additional support services provided plus survivors 
testimonies / case studies.  

 

 Are you breaking down data by equality groups where relevant (such as by gender, age, 
disability, ethnicity, sexual orientation, marital status, religion and belief, pregnancy and 
maternity)? 

 
This information is and will be gathered by the housing provider and support provider once the 
scheme is in operation. 

 

 Are you using partners, stakeholders, and councillors to get information and feedback? 
 

Feedback and examples of good practice will be gathered from partners and stakeholders as 
appropriate in addition to the independent evaluation mentioned above. 

 
 
 

Page 48



 UNCLASSIFIED  
 

3 of 4 

 
 
3. Impact 
 

 Are some people benefiting more – or less - than others?  If so, why might this be? 
 

This is a specialist service for women and children who are victims of domestic abuse. The 
funding for this service is focused on providing additional support for families and for women 
from BME backgrounds and those with complex needs as these were gaps in provision 
identified via evidence and existing data. 

 
4. Actions 
 

 If the evidence suggests that the policy / service / function benefits a particular group – or 
disadvantages another - is there a justifiable reason for this and if so, what is it? 

 
The funding for this service is specifically targeted to keep victims of domestic abuse safe. In 
order to protect this vulnerable group the service will be for women and children only. 

 

 Is it discriminatory in any way? 
 

No as stated above the funding is specifically for victims of domestic abuse part of which is 
focused on help for women from BME backgrounds. 

 

 Is there a possible impact in relationships or perceptions between different parts of the 
community? 

 
The service will be available to women and children from all sections of the community. 

 

 What measures can you put in place to reduce disadvantages? 
 

Policies and procedures will be developed by the housing and support provider to reduce as 
many disadvantages as possible. 

 

 Do you need to consult further? 
 

Ongoing consultation will take place with service users. 
 

 Have you identified any potential improvements to customer service? 
 

This funding opportunity to provide additional services at the safe house will provide 
improvements to the customer service available. 

 

 Who should you tell about the outcomes of this analysis? 
 

Lancashire CC and Hyndburn BC via monitoring undertaken. 
 

 Have you built the actions into your Business Plan with a clear timescale? 
 

The funding for the enhanced support services at the safe house is time limited to 18 months. 
LCC and Hyndburn BC will jointly seek to maintain / enhance the capacity of the core staff 

Page 49



 UNCLASSIFIED  
 

4 of 4 

team within the safe house to meet the needs of service users with more complex needs after 
the funding ceases. 
 
 

 When will this assessment need to be repeated? 
 

When and if the nature of the scheme changes significantly. 
 
 

 

Name:  FIONA GOODFELLOW   Signed:  
 
Service Area:  REGENERATION & HOUSING Dated : 19th February 2019 

 
If applicable, please attach copy of – or website link to - the cabinet report for reference. 

 
 

Don’t forget to return your written record to HR. 
 

Page 50



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 10.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 55

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Cabinet
	4. Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups
	Minutes Public Pack, 15/02/2019 Cabinet Committee (Street Naming)
	Minutes


	6. Sale of Clayton Triangle site - Update from Overview & Scrutiny Committee Call-in
	7. Renewal of Procurement Strategy
	procstrat2014

	8. Domestic Abuse Services
	Customer_First_Analysis_MHCLG £ 201820

	10. Disposal of 302 Burnley Road, Accrington
	disposal plan 1250


